22-25 JAN. 2026

RALLYE ONTE-CARLO

94º EDITION



RALLY GUIDE 2









L'ENVIRONNEMENT AU COEUR DE NOS ACTIONS

THE ENVIRONMENT AT THE HEART OF OUR ACTIONS



COUPE D'ARBRES
ET D'ARBUSTES INTERDITE
CUTTING OF TREES
AND SHRUBS PROHIBITED



FEU INTERDIT FIRE PROHIBITED



RESPECTONS LES RIVERAINS ET LEUR ENVIRONNEMENT RESPECT THE RESIDENTS AND THEIR ENVIRONMENT



TRIONS NOS DÉCHETS
ET UTILISONS DES POUBELLES
SORT OUR WASTE
AND USE GARBAGE BINS



PRIVILÉGIONS LE COVOITURAGE PRIORITIZE CARPOOLING











94° RALLYE AUTOMOBILE **MONTE-CARLO**

18 - 25 JANUARY 2026

Organised by THE AUTOMOBILE CLUB DE MONACO

Under the High Patronage of THEIR SERENE HIGHNESSES THE PRINCE AND PRINCESS OF MONACO

With the support of THE PRINCELY GOVERNMENT THE MUNICIPALITY OF MONACO THE SOCIETE DES BAINS DE MER THE MUNICIPALITY OF GAP THE FEDERATION INTERNATIONALE DE L'AUTOMOBILE

RALLY GUIDE 2

EVENT COUNTING FOR THE 2026 FIA WORLD RALLY CHAMPIONSHIP



This document has no regulatory power except Art. 5.3.





TABLE OF CONTENTS

1. INTRODUCTION	5
2. ORGANISATION CONTACT DETAILS	6
3. PROGRAMME AND CRITICAL DEADLINES	7
4. ENTRY DETAILS	9
5. SERVICE PARK	14
6. TWO-WAY RADIO	16
7. FUEL / TYRES	16
8. IMPORT OF VEHICLES AND SPARE PARTS	16
9. HELICOPTERS	16
10. HOSPITALITY ARRANGEMENTS	17
11. HOTELS	17
12. RECONNAISSANCE	17
13. SCRUTINEERING, SEALING AND MARKING	17
14. SHAKEDOWN	17
15. START PROCEDURE	17
16. FINISH PROCEDURE	18
17. PUBLIC RELATION ACTIVITIES	18
18. MEDIA	18
19. MEDICAL AND SAFETY SERVICES	22
20. LIST OF USEFUL FACTS AND SERVICES	24







1.INTRODUCTION

Despite facing multiple administrative and regulatory challenges, the Automobile Club of Monaco's Organizing Committee has successfully finalized the framework of the 94th Rallye Automobile Monte-Carlo – a feat requiring precision and flexibility. As the opening round of the 2026 FIA World Rally Championship (WRC), this legendary road event is poised to attract high-caliber teams and elite drivers from across the globe.

Reconnaissance runs will be conducted from **Sunday, January 18** through **Tuesday, January 20**. Participating crews will then engage in a modified shakedown session on **January 21 at 14:01**. Measuring 4.25 km, the trial route – first introduced in 2017 and extended for this edition – now integrates the Rabou's road in **Gap**, host city from 2014 to 2021 and again from 2024.

The official start of the 94th Rallye Automobile Monte-Carlo is set for **Thursday**, **January 22** at **14:30** from the podium ramp installed on **Quai Albert 1**^{er} in **Monaco**. This initial leg features three special stages, totaling 60.76 kilometers. Held in the departments of Alpes-Maritimes and Alpes-de-Haute-Provence, the stages **« Toudon / Saint-Antonin »** (SS 1 - 21,90 km - 16:05), **« Esclangon / Seyne-les-Alpes »** (SS 2 - 23,80 km - 18:35) and **« Vaumeilh / Claret »** (SS 3 - 15,06 km - 20:35) promise the potential for major surprises right from the start.

Two departments, Drôme and Hautes-Alpes, will host the second day of rallying, with a total of 128.88 kilometers against the clock. This leg comprises a three-stage loop repeated twice, including **«Laborel / Chauvac-Laux-Montaux »** (SS 4/7 - 17,95 km - 09:04/15:16), **«Saint-Nazaire-le-Désert / La Motte-Chalancon »** (SS 5/8 - 28,70 km - 10:32/16:44) and **«La Bâtie-des-Fonts / Aspremont »** (SS 6/9 - 17,79 km - 11:50/18:05). This second leg, packed with technical challenges, is simply the longest of the entire rally.

While shorter in length, Saturday's mostly Alpes-de-Haute-Provence-based stage remains equally demanding. It features a total of 77.61 kilometers of timed sections, including the band-new **« La Bréole / Bellaffaire »** via the **Garcinets** pass (SS 10/12 - 29,93 km - 08:31/12:31), run twice, and a daytime reprise of **« Vaumeilh / Claret »** from Thursday evening (SS 11 - 15,06 km - 09:55). In contrast to the 2025 edition, this year the return to Monaco happens Saturday afternoon and wraps up with a super special stage, the first since 2008 (SSS 13 - 2,69 km - 18:35), set on the lower section of the iconic **Monaco Circuit**.

Rallye Automobile Monte-Carlo will culminate with a thrilling final showdown across two legendary mountain stages, each repeated twice and totaling 71.90 kilometers. Crews will tackle **« Col de Braus / La Cabanette »** (SS 14/16 - 12,50 km - 08:05/11:09) and **« La Bollène-Vésubie / Moulinet »** (SS 15/17 - 23,45 km - 09:35/13:15), with the second run of the latter serving as the Wolf Power Stage - a decisive moment where drivers can gain crucial championship points. The rally will officially conclude with the final podium and awards ceremony held at **Port Hercule**, beginning at 17:00...

Eric BARRABINO Event Director





2. ORGANISATION CONTACT DETAILS

2.1 Organisation permanent contact details

Automobile Club de Monaco - 23 Boulevard Albert 1er - B.P. 464 - MC98012 MONACO Cedex

Tel: +377 93 15 26 00 - E-mail: rallye@acm.mc - Website: www.acm.mc Opening hours: Monday to Friday from 09:00 to 12:30 and 14:00 to 18:00

Main contacts:

Event Director	Mr Eric Barrabino	+377 93 15 26 00	ebarrabino@acm.mc	
Clerk of the Course	Mr Romain PUGLIESE	+377 93 15 26 19 +33 6 80 86 50 11	rpugliese@acm.mc	
Rally Secretary	Mrs Marielle KRAEMER	+377 93 15 26 15 +377 37 70 36 12	mkraemer@acm.mc	
Communications and Media Manager	Mr Richard MICOUD	+377 93 15 26 31 +33 6 07 93 79 51	rmicoud@acm.mc	
Chief Safety Officer	Mr Eric Pannier	+377 93 15 20 23 +33 6 43 91 93 28	epannier@acm.mc	
Chief Medical Officer	Dr Benoit PAULMIER	. 777 07 15 26 77	modical@acm.mc	
Medical Secretary	+ 377 93 15 26 73 Yetary Mrs Ana-Rita RIBEIRO		medical@acm.mc	
Sustainability Officer	Mrs Caline DEALEXANDRIS	+377 93 15 26 49	cdealexandris@acm.mc	
Operations Manager	Mr Romain Haut- LABOURDETTE	+377 93 15 26 48 +377 37 70 20 87	<u>rhaut-</u> <u>labourdette@acm.mc</u>	
Service Park Manager	Mr Jesse BOUDRET	+33 6 67 83 61 17	servicepark@acm.mc	
Competitors' Relations Officers	Mr Jean-Marc HAIBLE Mr Raymond GNUTTI Mr Giancarlo RAFFERMI Mr Gilles CONVERTINI	+33 6 21 97 10 98 +33 6 07 93 71 25 +33 6 09 50 73 81 +33 7 88 68 47 71	rallye@acm.mc	





2.2 Rally HQ contact details (See Supplementary Regulations)

2.3 Media Centre contacts details

Media Centre Gap	Media Centre Monaco
Centre Omnisport COSEC Avenue de Traunstein	Restaurant Marius Monaco 6, Quai Antoine 1er
05000 GAP	98000 MONACO

Communications and Media Manager

Mr Richard MICOUD

E-mail: rmicoud@acm.mc Mob: +33 6 07 93 79 51 FIA WRC Media Delegate

Mr Sven GOOD

E-mail: sgood@fia.com Mob: +44 77 80 94 91 76

2.4 Opening hours Rally HQ, Accreditation & Media Centre

		QG Monaco	QG Gap	Centre Media Gap	Media Centre Monaco	Media Accredtation Gap
Sunday	18 january	11:00 - 20:00	-	-	-	1
Monday	19 january	06:30 - 20:30	06:30 - 20:30	14:00 - 20:00	-	14:00 - 20:00
Tuesday	20 january	07:00 - 20:00	07:00 - 20:00	08:00 - 20:00	-	08:00 - 19:00
Wednesday	21 january	07:00 - 20:30	07:00 - 20:30	08:00 - 20:00	-	08:00 - 10:30 12:00 - 19:00
Thursday	22 january	12:00 - 24:00	12:00 - 24:00	08:00 - *	-	08:00 - 20:00
Friday	23 january	00:00 - 01:00 05:00 - 24:00	00:00 - 01:00 05:00 - 24:00	06:30 - *	-	-
Saturday	24 january	05:00 - 24:00	05:00 - 14:00	06:30 - *	14:00 - *	-
Sunday	25 january	04:35 - 16:00	-	-	06:00 - *	-

^{*}until the last journalist leaves





3. PROGRAMME AND CRITICAL DEADLINES

3.1 Schedule before the rally week

Friday 19 Decem	nber 2025	
	Closing date for entries	See Art. 4
	Deadline to send the required documentation to the organiser	See Art. 4.2
	Publication of Rally Guide 2 and Road Book	www.acm.mc
Friday 26 Decem	nber 2025	
·	Closing date for Hankook tyre orders	See Art. 7
	Closing date for FIA and ACM fuel orders	See Art. 8
	Closing date for national media accreditation	www.acm.mc
Monday 29 Dece	ember 2025	_
	Deadline for reconnaissance registration	See Art. 9
Monday 5 Janua	ry 2026	
	Entry List published	DNB - Sportity
	Deadline for route note car registration	See Art. 12.24
Closing date for international media accreditation FIA Media		FIA Media
Friday 9 January	2026	
	Deadline to submit joint service request	rallye@acm.mc Cc: servicepark@acm.mc
Monday 12 Janu	ary 2026	
	Deadline to apply for onboard camera authorisation	See Art. 11.9
Thursday 15 Jan	nuary 2026	·
14:00	Service Park open to manufacturers	GAP - Service Park
Friday 16 Janua	ry 2026	
	Deadline to nominate the competitor representative	See Art. 2.9
Saturday 17 Jan	uary 2026	
08:00	Service Park open to all competitors	GAP - Service Park





3.2 Schedule during the rally week

Sunday 18 Januar	ry 2026	
2311003 10 3011001	P1, P2 and P3 competitors: administrative checks, collection of	
06:00-10:00	materials and documents Collection of individual event access codes (and smartphones, if opted) for reconnaissance tracking app (RS Lite)	MONACO - Automobile Club de Monaco
10:00-12:00	Non-Priority competitors: administrative checks, collection of materials and documents Collection of individual event access codes (and smartphones, if opted) for reconnaissance tracking app (RS Lite)	MONACO - Automobile Club de Monaco
12:00-14:00	Reconnaissance Super Special Stage P1 crews start at 12:00. All other crews at 12:30	
13:30-19:00	Reconnaissance Day 1 P1 crews start at 13:30. All other crews at 13:45	
Monday 19 Janua	ry 2026	
07:45-20:00	Reconnaissance Day 2 P1 crews start at 07:45. All other crews at 08:00	
19:00-21:00	Collection of the FIA safety tracking device – SAS workshop	GAP - Service Park
17:00	Helicopter pilots' briefing	GAP - Media Centre
22:00	Deadline for all drivers and co-drivers to have completed the eLearning course on the FIA safety tracking device	See Art. 12.1
Tuesday 20 Janua	ory 2026	
07:00-22:00	Scrutineering and components sealing for all competitors except P1 (schedule to be published in a bulletin)	GAP - Lycée Technique CFA
08:00-19:00	Reconnaissance Day 3 P1 crews start at 08:00. All other crews at 08:15	
14:00-19:00	Reconnaissance Shakedown	
16:00	Team Managers' meeting (by invitation only)	GAP - Media Centre
17:00-20:00	Return of the rented reconnaissance smartphones (if not used by the Route Note Car)	GAP - Service Park
20:00	Drivers' safety briefing mandatory for all drivers and co-drivers participating in their first WRC event in 2026	GAP - Media Centre





W 1 1 24 1	2025	
Wednesday 21 Ja		T
08:00	Publication of Shakedown Start List (P1 and invited crews)	DNB - Sportity
08:00-12:00	Scrutineering and components sealing for P1 competitors (schedule to be published in a bulletin)	GAP - Service Park
10:00	ACM safety cars crews briefing	GAP - Media Centre
11:00	Tabard media safety briefing	GAP - Media Centre
11:00	Extrication exercise	GAP - Service Park
12:30-13:00	Autograph session for P1 drivers	GAP - Fan Zone
14:01-15:30	Shakedown for P1 and invited drivers	
15:31-17:00	Shakedown for all priority drivers	GAP - Route de la Garde
17:01-18:30	Shakedown for P2, P3 and non-priority drivers	
18:00-19:30	Media Pen for P1 and P2 drivers	GAP - Fan Zone
Thursday 22 Janu	uary 2026	
10:00	Publication of Start List for Section 1	DNB - Sportity
10:30	Deadline for all P1 and P2 cars' set-up nominated by the FIA Media Delegate	MONACO - Holding Area
11:00-12:00	Meet-and-greet for P1 and P2 drivers nominated by the FIA Media Delegate	MONACO - Port Hercule
12:00	Medical briefing	GAP - Parc Fermé
12:10-12:45	Autograph session for P1 drivers	
12:45-13:00	Rally1 cars official photograph	
13:00-13:15	Official Photograph for all P1 crews and any P2 crews nominated by the FIA Media Delegate	MONACO - Port Hercule
13:15-13:45	Meet the Crews (start ramp)	
13:45-14:30	Grid walk	
14:30	Start of Section 1	
~ 22:00	Meet the Crews	GAP - Fan Zone
Friday 23 Januar	y 2026	
00:30	Publication of Start List for Section 2	DNB - Sportity
07:28	Start of Section 2	GAP - Parc d'Assistance
~ 19:30	Meet the Crews	GAP - Fan Zone
23:50	Publication of Start List for Section 4	DNB - Sportity
Saturday 24 Janu	pary 2026	
07:30	Start of Section 4	GAP - Parc d'Assistance
23:55	Publication of Start List for Section 7	DNB - Sportity
		·





Sunday 25 January 2026		
06:22	Start of Section 7	MONACO - Port Hercule
16:15	FIA post-rally press conference	MONACO - Port Hercule
17:00	Prize-giving ceremony	MONACO - Port Hercule
17:00	Return of the FIA safety tracking device and the rented reconnaissance smartphones - SAS office near Parc Fermé in Monaco	See Art. 11.8 & 12.24.1
18:00	Final scrutineering	MONACO - Service du Contrôle Technique
19:00	Publication of provisional classification	DNB - Sportity
20:30	Gala dinner	MONACO - Sporting MC

Digital Notice Board (DNB): available in the Sportity app (downloadable for iOS devices on Appstore and for Android devices on Google Play). Password is RAMC2026

4. ENTRY DETAILS

4.1 Titles for which the rally counts

FIA World Rally Championship for Drivers and Co-Drivers

FIA World Rally Championship for Manufacturers

FIA World Rally Championship for Teams

FIA WRC2 Championship for Drivers and Co-Drivers

FIA WRC2 Championship for Teams

FIA WRC2 Challenger Championship for Drivers and Co-Drivers

FIA WRC Master Cup for Drivers and Co-Drivers

FIA WRC3 Championship for Drivers and Co-Drivers

4.2 Entry procedure

The closing date for entries is **Friday**, **19**th **December 2025** at 23:59 (CET).

Manufacturers, P2 and P3 competitors who wish to score points in FIA Championships, must make their entries by using the electronic standard rally entry form for their championships available in the FIA application at https://registrations.fia.com/rally.

Any non-priority competitor wishing to take part in 94° RALLYE AUTOMOBILE MONTE-CARLO must register and fill the electronic entry form published https://registrations.fia.com/wrcmon duly completed before the entries' closing date.

The entry application will only be accepted if accompanied by the total amount of the entry fee.

In addition to submitting the online registration form to the FIA, competitors are also required to submit the following documents to the platform before the registration deadline via the link: : Competitors' area RAMC 2026

- Proof of payment of the total amount of entry fees
- Copies of the Driver and Co-driver passports or identity cards
- Copies of the Competitor, Driver and Co-driver International Competition Licences
- Copy of the RNC Driver Competition licence (Internationale if P1/P2 or Nationale for the others)





- Copies of the Driver and Co-driver driving licences
- One identity photo of the Driver and Co-driver (in JPEG or PNG)
- Copy of the first page of the car homologation papers (not for Rally1 cars)
- Copies of the car's registration papers or proof of ownership
- Copy of the entry form duly signed
- Service structure form

By entering the rally, the competitor and the crew submit themselves to the sporting jurisdictions specified in the 2026 FIA International Sporting Code and its appendices, the 2026 FIA WRC Sporting Regulations and these Supplementary Regulations (2026 FIA WRC Sporting Regulations, Art. 22.5).

4.3 Number of competitors accepted and classes

The maximum number of crews will be 60. If more than 60 entries are received, the organiser reserves the right to decide which entries among the non-priority drivers will be accepted. Cars will be divided in classes (and groups) as indicated in Article 12.4 of the 2026 FIA WRC Sporting Regulations.

The classification "Promotion" is reserved to non-priority competitors entered as private competitor and never had a FIA priority P1, P2, P3 or P4.

4.4 Entry packages

The entry packages for FIA Championship competitors will be as stipulated by the FIA in the 2026 FIA WRC Sporting Regulations, Appendix VI.

Entry packages for non-priority competitors:

	p. 10115, 2011, p. 231.001.2.	Private competitor	Legal entity as competitor, per car
Vahiala alatas	Service	1	2
Vehicle plates	Auxiliary	1	1
0	Driver	2	2
Passes	Team	2	6
Printed	Road Book sets	2	4
materials	Programme	2	4
Service Park ar	ea, approximately	80 m ²	100 m²

4.5 Additional material

Service Plate (only one additional plate is possible) 250 € Road Book 100€





4.6 Entry fees

Manufacturers, other WRC cars and competitors in the Support Championships

Entry fees for Manufacturers, WRC Teams and competitors in all WRC Support Championships (WRC2, WRC3) are as stipulated in the 2026 FIA WRC Sporting Regulations.

Non-priority competitors

Private competitor	Legal entity as competitor
4 500 €	9 400 €

Private competitor = competitor is one of the crew members, holding a valid international competitor's licence

Legal entity as competitor = crew entered by an entity holding a valid international competitor's licence

Fee for Reconnaissance Only: 1 500 €

4.7 Payment details

The entry fees must be paid by bank transfer:

Name of the Bank: Société Générale

Address: 18 Quai Jean Charles Rey - Monaco

Account Holder: Automobile Club Monaco

IBAN: MC58 3000 3023 0800 0372 6116 733

BIC: SOGEMCM1

Any bank charges incurred must be paid by the competitors in addition to the entry fees. Please ensure that the competitor's name and account holder are included as reference on all bank transfers.

The proof of the payment must be sent to the rally secretariat before close of entries (Friday, 19th December 2025).

4.8 Refunds

Entry fees will be refunded in full only:

- to candidates whose entry has not been accepted
- in the case of the rally not taking place

In all other cases, no entry fees will be refunded.





5. SERVICE PARK

5.1 Service Park

Address: Centre Omnisport COSEC - Avenue de Traunstein - 05000 GAP

Accessible:

- To manufacturers from Thursday, 15th January 2026 14:00
- To all competitors from Saturday, 17th January 2026 08:00

Surface: asphalt

A carwash area will be available before the entrance in the service park.

5.2 Facilities available in the service park

For manufacturers:

- Water connection
- Private WC

For all competitors:

- General lighting
- Garbage containers and waste collection
- Oil removal
- General security
- Public WC

Optional and additional facilities:

Phone lines - ADSL - WIFI:

ORANGE EVENTS SOLUTIONS Temporary national/international lines

Tel: +33 1 44 35 75 03 E-mail: oes@orange.com

WC rental:

HAPPEE SERVICES

Tel: +33 7 88 57 27 84

E-mail: frederic.mirlocca@happee-services.com

Materials rental:

GAP MATERIELS

Tel: +33 4 92 51 25 54

E-mail: direction@gapmateriel.fr





5.3 Service Park regulations and environmental requirements

5.3.1 Environmental requirements

It is forbidden under any circumstances to drill holes in the surface of the Service Park.

Teams and competitors are asked to bring weights for tents and other items, which must be securely fastened.

Teams and competitors must ensure that no fuel, waste water or other liquids leak onto the ground. Floor mats must be used.

Washing of vehicles and spare parts is forbidden in the service park.

A washing area will be set up at the entrance to the service park.

Unauthorized power supply from street fittings is forbidden.

Any violations of the recycling instructions given for the service park area will entail the following penalties:

- 1st infringement: a fine of 1 000 € notified by the Clerk of the Course
- 2nd infringement: a fine of 2 000 € notified by the Clerk of the Course
- 3rd infringement: will be reported to the Stewards

5.3.2 Regulations

Only vehicles identified "Service", "Auxiliary" or "Route Note Car" are allowed in the service park. If these vehicles do not fit in the competitors' allocated area, they must be parked outside the service park, in the parking P2: 44°32'17.8"N 6°03'17.8"E

These vehicles must not be driven in the lanes used by the competing cars 30 minutes prior to the expected arrival of the first competitor at TC service park IN until the last competitor has checked-in at TC service park OUT, except between TC 11B and TC 11C for vans to be loaded before the Remote Service Zone. These vehicles must be parked in the competitors' allocated area.

Trailers shall be parked outside the service park in the parking P2: 44°32'17.8"N 6°03'17.8"E

Trucks must be parked in the parking in Lettret: 44°28'27.3"N 6°04'27.9"E

Any vehicle which is not parked inside the competitor's allocated area in the service park will result in a penalty of 1 500 € per vehicle. Any such application of the regulations by the Clerk of the Course will be notified to the competitor concerned.

The circulation of any vehicle with a Total Loaded Weight (PTAC) greater than 3.5 tonnes is prohibited on the Monegasque territory between 08:00am and 09:00am

5.4 Logistics in Monaco

On **Thursday, 22nd January**, teams can unload rally cars on the:

- Unloading area, Quai Albert 1er: 43°43′58.4″N 7°25′21.3″E
- Remote Service Zone, Esplanade des Pêcheurs: 43°44′01.4″N 7°25′43.1″E
- Swimming pool road, right hand-side: 43°44'09.9"N 7°25'18.4"E
- Darse Sud: 43°44′00.5"N 7°25′21.5"E

Trucks standing-by in Monaco from Thursday, 22nd January to Sunday, 25th January, must be parked Avenue de la Quarantaine: 43°43′57.4″N 7°25′32.5″E





On <u>Saturday</u>, <u>24th January</u>, trucks and vans with trailers coming back from Gap must standby outside Monaco until the end of the SSS 13, around 10:00pm. These vehicles must be parked on the:

- Quai Rainier III: 43°44′08.0″N 7°25′50.8″E
- Parking des Pêcheurs, ground floor (limited parking slots): 43°43′53.4″N 7°25′38.4″E

6. TWO-WAY RADIO

The temporary use of radio frequencies on the Monegasque and French territories is subject to prior approval. The forms available on www.acm.mc may be completed and returned to the concerned authorities.

7. FUEL / TYRES

(See Supplementary Regulations)

8. IMPORT OF VEHICLES AND SPARE PARTS

Vehicles from the European Union do not need a specific document for Customs clearance. Only non-EU competitors will need to show an ATA (obtainable from the Chamber of Commerce of the country of origin) to Customs Authorities at their point of entry into the European Union. Vehicles from the European Union, but passing through Switzerland (a non-EU member) should contact:

Oberzolldirektion, Monbijoustrasse 40, CH-3003 Berne (Switzerland)

Tel: +41. (0)31 322.6511 - Fax: +41 (0)31.322.7812 - Website: www.ezv.admin.ch

9. HELICOPTERS

In accordance with articles L363-1 to L363-3 of the French Environment Code, amended by law no. 2022-217 of February 21, 2022, article 63, which prohibits the landing of aircraft for commercial purposes in mountainous areas (+800m altitude), helicopters intended for VIPs will no longer be authorized.

Only security and television helicopters will be allowed.





10. HOSPITALITY ARRANGEMENTS

Access to the special stages' public zones and to the service park of the 94° Rallye Automobile Monte-Carlo are free for spectators.

10.1 Companies in charge of the VIP hospitality

The Automobile Club de Monaco has accredited only two companies designed below to be responsible for the VIP operations on the 94e Rallye Automobile Monte-Carlo:

COMPANY	TEL	E-MAIL
ALL SPORTS MANAGEMENT	+377 97 98 49 72	events@allsportsmanagement.mc
EUROPEAN SPORT COMMUNICATION	+352 661 104 199	alexandre@european-sport.com

Any company, other than those listed above, wishing to organise VIP hospitality operations during the rally, must advise the organiser and present their programme. (e-mail: rallye@acm.mc).

11. HOTELS

https://www.gap-tallard-vallees.fr/ // https://www.monte-carlo.mc/en/hotels/

12. RECONNAISSANCE

(See Supplementary Regulations)

13. SCRUTINEERING, SEALING AND MARKING

(See Supplementary Regulations)

14. SHAKEDOWN

(See Supplementary Regulation)

15. START PROCEDURE

The start of the "94° Rallye Automobile Monte-Carlo" will take place on Thursday, 22nd **January 2025** at 14:30 - Quai Albert 1^{er}. The holding area and tyre fitting zone preceding the starting podium will be open from 09:00. Each competitor will park in a slot identified by his competition number. Parc Fermé rules will not apply to this holding area and tyre fitting

First car shall drive on the starting podium (TC 0) 3 minutes before its due time for interviews. Following cars shall drive on the starting podium immediately after the previous car has started.





16. FINISH PROCEDURE

After TC 17B, competitors will enter the Parc Fermé.

All competitors must be present in the Parc Fermé at 16:45.

Teams of the top-three competitors in the overall classification and those of the competitors selected for the final scrutineering must arrange for a mechanic to be present beside the podium. The mechanic will retrieve the car from the podium, drive it down and park at the base of it, where a scrutineer will get on board of the cars submitted for the final scrutineering.

The Parc Fermé regulations will apply from TC 17A until the Stewards open the Parc Fermé.

17. PUBLIC RELATION ACTIVITIES

1 - Autographs sessions:

- Gap Fan Zone: Wednesday, 21st January 2026 from 12:30 to 13:00 for P1 drivers.
- Monaco Port Hercule: Thursday, 22nd January 2026 from 12:10 to 12:45 for P1 drivers.

2 - Official photos:

- Monaco Port Hercule: Thursday, 22nd January 2026 from 12:45 to 13:00 for Rally1 cars.
- Monaco Port Hercule: Thursday, 22nd January 2026 from 13:00 to 13:15 for P1 and P2 drivers.





18. MEDIA

18.1 Contacts

Mob: +44 77 80 94 91 76 - E-mail: sgood@fia.com

18.2 Accreditation procedure

18.2.1 Principles

1. A maximum of three representatives (journalist and/or photographers) per publication may be accredited for the 94° Rallye Automobile Monte-Carlo.

Only one pass will be issued to websites. Photo, TV or radio tabards are not issued for websites.

- 2. Agencies must meet the same criteria as publications. The central offices or premises of the main international agencies will be accredited by the FIA.
- 3. To be accredited, Media must have a distribution that meets criteria of quality and quantity of the FIA.
- 4. The advertising, public relation, marketing, agencies, etc.... shall in no case be accredited as Media, and Organiser will not issue accreditation to representatives (press officer or otherwise) of sponsors, suppliers, manufacturers, drivers, etc....
- A Media holding a permanent pass issued by the FIA and wishing an additional accreditation for journalist and/or photographers must apply directly on the FIA website.

18.2.2 Procedures

- Foreign Media must submit their request on the FIA website before <u>Monday</u>, 5th
 <u>January 2026</u>: https://acm.mc/en/epreuves/rallye-automobile-monte-carlo/press-area/accreditation-requests/
- 2. Monegasque Media must submit their request on the ACM website before <u>Friday</u>, <u>26th Decembre 2025</u>: https://acm.mc/en/epreuves/rallye-automobile-monte-carlo/press-area/accreditation-requests/
- 3. Press photographers under contract with agencies or publications must provide documentation justifying the publication of a minimum of 15 pictures of the previous edition (2025).





- 4. The request must include:
- The accreditation form completed;
- An application for accreditation on an official letterhead paper of the media or agency and signed by the editor or publisher;
- A copy of the publication and information diffusion (distribution, readership, frequency...) just for first-time applicants;
- Copies of the published articles covering the 2025 FIA World Rally Championship and possibly those dealing with the Rallye Automobile Monte-Carlo 2025;
- A photocopy of the press card of the representative who will cover the Rallye Automobile Monte-Carlo 2026:
- Information on the coverage provided for the Rallye Automobile Monte-Carlo 2026, with details on release dates or broadcast.
- 5. Documents submitted late and/or incomplete will not be considered.

18.3 Television, radios and digital media accreditation Request regarding television, radio and digital media may be sent online

18.4 Commercial Photographers Accreditation

Requests from Radio or Television Stations, Websites and other electronic media must be sent online.

18.5 Accreditation and media centres

GAP Centre Omnisport COSEC - Avenue de Traunstein - 05000 GAP

Opening hours:

	Media Centre	Accreditation
Monday 19 January	14:00 - 20:00	14:00 - 20:00
Tuesday 20 January	08:00 - 20:00	08:00 - 19:00
Wednesday 21 January	08:00 - 20:00	08:00 - 10:30 12:00 - 19:00
Thursday 22 January	08:00 - *	08:00 - 20:00
Friday 23 January	06:30 - *	Closed
Saturday 24 January	06:30 - *	Closed
Sunday 25 January	Closed	Closed

(*) = until the last journalist leaves





MONACO

Restaurant Marius Monaco - 6, Quai Antoine 1er - 98000 MONACO

Opening hours:

	Media Centre	Accreditation
Saturday 24 January	14:00 - *	Closed
Sunday 25 January	06:00 - *	Closed

(*) = until the last journalist leaves

18.6 FIA press conferences (See Supplementary Regulations)

18.7 Teams' media contact details

HYUNDAI SHELL MOBIS WORLD RALLY TEAM

Nicoletta RUSSO +49 6023 9929 454 (NR office) +49 151 1135 4362 (NR mobile) nrusso@hyundai-ms.com

http://press.motorsport.hyundai.com (press login)

M-SPORT FORD WORLD RALLY TEAM

Emily CHAPMAN +44 7539 296418 (EC mobile) echapman@m-sport.co.uk

www.m-sport.co.uk www.msportmedia.dphoto.com (image database)

TOYOTA GAZOO RACING WRT

Hans DE BAUW +32 475 242 864 (HDB mobile) hans.debauw@tgr-europe.com Justin NEUMANN +49 1 72 43 93 444 (JN mobile) justin.neumann@tgr-europe.com

www.toyotagazooracing.com

WRC PROMOTER

Jared GRELLET +44 173 5272 290 (JG Mobile) jared.grellet@wrc.com

www.wrc.com

HANKOOK

Tim Bergmeister - t.bergmeister@hankook-competition.com Steven Cho - steven@atlasbxracing.com





18.8 Media coverage

TV:

- Monaco Info
- > TV Monaco
- Canal Plus
- Rally.TV

Radios:

- > ici Azur / Provence
- > Radio Monaco

Press:

- ➤ L'Equipe
- Le Figaro
- Monaco-Nice-Var Matin
- > Le Dauphiné Libéré
- > La Provence
- Auto-Hebdo
- > Echappement
- Rallyes Magazine

19. MEDICAL AND SAFETY SERVICES

EUROPEAN EMERGENCY NUMBER: 112

GENDARMERIE / POLICE: 17

FIRE SERVICE: 18

ANTI-POISON CENTER: +33 4 91 75 25 25 MONACO POLICE: +377 93 15 30 15 GAP POLICE: +33 4 86 99 18 00

HOSPITALS

		STANDARD	EMERGENCY
GAP	CENTRE HOSPITALIER DES ALPES DU SUD CHICAS 1 Place Auguste Muret 05000 GAP (Hautes Alpes)	+33 4 92 40 61 61	+33 4 92 40 61 20 +33 4 92 40 67 27 / 28/29/30
DIGNE	CENTRE HOSPITALIER DE DIGNE LES BAINS Quartier Saint Christophe BP 213 04003 DIGNE LES BAINS CEDEX (Alpes Haute Provence)	+33 4 92 30 15 15	+33 4 92 30 17 38







NICE	CENTRE HOSPITALIER PASTEUR 30 Voie Romaine 06000 NICE (Alpes Maritimes)	+33 4 92 03 77 77	+33 4 92 03 33 78
MONACO	CENTRE HOSPITALIER PRINCESSE GRACE Avenue Pasteur 98000 MONACO	+377 97 98 99 00	Accueil: +377 97 98 97 69 Médecins: +377 97 98 97 95

PHARMACIES

MONACO	PHARMACIE MEDECIN	+377 93 30 17 06	19 Boulevard Albert 1er
	PHARMACIE INTERNATIONALE	+377 90 30 35 99	22 Rue Grimaldi
	PHARMACIE J.P. FERRY (Open on Sunday)	+377 93 30 21 94	1 Rue Grimaldi
	PHARMACIE CENTRALE	+377 93 30 21 01	1 Place d'Armes
	PHARMACIE PERIMOND	+33 4 92 52 35 41	19 Avenue de Provence
GAP	PHARMACIE SAINT ROCH	+33 4 92 51 12 41	72 Avenue Jean Jaurès
	PHARMACIE ETHIC'SANTE	+33 6 43 61 77 41	70 Route des Eyssagnières

TOWING SERVICE

MONACO	DEPANNAGE HERCULE	+377 92 05 26 60	3 Avenue des Guelfes
GAP	BARIDON Philippe	+33 4 92 52 65 75	5 Route Pic Ponçon ZA Eyssagnières
TALLARD	ALPES ASSISTANCE DEPANNAGES	+33 4 92 54 18 20	Aéropole Gap Tallard





20. LIST OF USEFUL FACTS AND SERVICES

20.1 Weather, time zone and sunrise/sunset

Weather: Mediterranean

Time zone: GMT + 1

	GAP	MONACO
Wednesday 21 January	08:03 / 17:30	
Thursday 22 January	08:02 / 17:32	07:55 / 17:28
Friday 23 January	08:01 / 17:33	07:54 / 17:30
Saturday 24 j January	08:00 / 17:31	07:53 / 17:31
Sunday 25 January		07:52 / 17:32

20.2 Car rental

MONACO	AVIS	+377 93 30 17 53	9 Avenue d'Ostende
	EUROPCAR	+377 93 50 74 95	47 Avenue de Grande Bretagne
	HERTZ	+377 93 50 79 60	27 Boulevard Albert 1 ^{er}
GAP	AVIS	+33 4 92 51 26 09	Gare SNCF
	EUROPCAR	+33 4 92 53 71 71	6 Avenue Cdt Dumont
	RENT A CAR	+33 4 92 53 90 62	4 Avenue Lesdiguières
	ADA	+33 4 92 20 52 36	3 Avenue Maréchal Foch

